
Item
 I – A

genda

1



 
www.miamidade.gov/build 

 
 

CITIZENS’ ADVISORY COMMITTEE  
AGENDA  

 

January 26, 2011   8:30 AM – 10:30 AM 
18th Floor Conference Room 18-3 

 

  Item      Presenter 
 

I.  Welcome & Introductions     Vice-Chairwoman Bisno 

II.  Approval of Minutes                Vice-Chairwoman Bisno (FA) 

  A.  September 7, 2010 
  B.  October 26, 2010   
 

   III. OCI Director’s Status Report     George Navarrete (FI)  

     IV.   2011 Sunset Review of County Boards   George Navarrete (FA) 

                V. GOB Quarterly Report – July 1, 2010 – Dec. 31, 2010 George Navarrete (FA)   

    VI. Significant Modifications/Additions & Deletions                                 

 
 A. Historic Biltmore Hotel – Project No. 293   George Navarrete (FA) 

     “Historic Preservation Fund” – D6 

 
   VII. BBC-GOB Financing      George Navarrete (FI) 

 

   VIII.  Commission Sponsored Items 

A. Villa Capri Apartments – GOB Project No. 249 – D9 George Navarrete (FI) 
B. Richmond Place Townhome Project – GOB 249 – D9 George Navarrete (FI) 
C. SBC Senior Housing LLC – GOB 249 – D9  George Navarrete (FI) 

    IX. Election of New Chairperson 

     X.    Public Comments         

       FA – For Action   FI – For Information     Next CAC Meeting Date – March 23, 2011 

2



Item
 II A

3



 

                                                                                          1 

I.  Welcome and Introductions 

Discussion: 

 
The meeting was called to order at 8:32 A.M. by Chairwoman Robin Reiter-Faragalli. She thanked 
members for attending the meeting.  While waiting on a quorum the Chairwoman asked to start 
with the information items. 
 

V E. Affordable Housing Allocation – District 4  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Discussion: 
 

 
Mr. George Navarrete reported that this item was approved by the Board of County 
Commissioners on July 8, 2010.  In this item, the District 4 Commissioner is allocating the 
District’s affordable housing allocation of $10,529,307 to Waterford I Associates, Ltd. and 
requesting authorization to negotiate agreements with the company for the development of 
multifamily rental housing on privately-owned land in District 4. 
 
* Mr. Navarrete reported on the action items from the last meeting.  The first action item was to 
make sure to schedule the CAC Committee meeting before BCC meetings and that is being 
done.  The other item was to look into the Virginia Key Beach project and revisit who is the 
named stakeholder. This action item will be addressed when the next agreement is executed with 
the stakeholder. 
 
* The Chairwoman asked for an update on what is happening with the GOB next two bond sales 
project list.  Mr. Navarrete reported that a list was sent to the Commissioners with a memo from 
the County Manager before the Board took action to set the debt service millage rate.  
Subsequently, the Board set the proposed debt service millage rate and staff has been meeting 
with Commissioners and or their staff and trying to see if there were any high priority projects that 
were not considered.  Once all those meetings are completed and the final budget is set, staff can 
finalize the list based on the final adopted debt service millage rate.  It is anticipated that the final 
list will be presented to the Board in October along with the request for approval for the next bond 
sale.  The bond sale would subsequently take place in December 2010.  Mr. Navarrete noted that 
some of the items on the agenda today direct staff to include specific projects in the next bond 
sale resolution.  In some cases, staff has prepared supplemental memos informing 
Commissioners what the operational impact of implementing these projects will be.  
 
The Chairwoman commented that there are two items on the agenda, items V-B and V-C, the 
West Perrine Park Family Aquatic Center and the Westchester Arts Center, which she thinks fall 
outside of the Committee’s purview.  The Chairwoman indicated that two County Commissioners 
were requesting that these two projects be added to the list.  The Chairwoman stated that, since, 
as a Committee, the CAC had taken the position that they are not going to consider individual 
projects but rather focus on the process and criteria for projects being included on the list, she 
believed the Committee should not be voting on these projects.  She indicated that this should be 
a management decision, not a CAC decision.   
 
The Chairwoman also stated that the CAC had discussed the process and criteria for projects 
being included on the list at length and twice now was being asked to consider individual projects.   
She indicated that she did not feel comfortable making such a decision.  There was a criterion in 

Building Better Communities (BBC) 
GOB Citizens’ Advisory Committee 
 
 
 

September 7, 2010 
8:30 A.M. 

12th Floor Conference Room 12A 

Attendees: 

 
Committee members:   Robin Reiter-Faragalli,  Dr. Jay Hess, Guy Forchion, Javier Salman,  Wendell 
James, Jeffrey Mishcon, Mary Scott Russell,  Harry Hoffman, Ernesto Martinez, Jr.,   
 
Others present:   Maggie Tawil (MDPR); Jorge Mora (MDPR); Eric Stephens (Zoo Miami); Angus Laney 
(MDPR); Erica Wright (District 3); Joel Arango (MDPR); Ron Magill (Zoo Miami); Richard Heisenbottle 
(R.J. Heisenbottle Architects); Aleida Arrazcaeta (OCI); Geri Keenan (CAO); Jose Galan (OCI); 
Charlayne W. Thompkins (Historic Hampton House Trust); Jose Garcia (MAM); Gillian Thomas (Miami 
Science Museum); Orky Rodriguez (PWD); Antonio Cotarela (PWD); Anthony D. Atwood (Miami Military 
Museum); Merci Rodriguez (Mayor’s Office); Joe Martory (Miami Military Museum); George Navarrete 
(OCI); Roslyn Alic-Batson (OCI);    Ralph Cutie (OCI); Ana Finol (OCI);  Kathleen Kaufman (DPZ/OHAR);  
Felix Hernandez, Jr. (PWD); Mike Riera (PWD);  Sabrata Basu (DP&Z); Frank Barriga (OCI).  
 

4



 

                                                                                          2 

place such as cash flow, project readiness and operational impact.  The Chairwoman stated that 
the list was still being revised and was not final and that the criteria for projects to get on the list 
should have a more reasoned approach.  The Chairwoman stated that the Committee already 
took a position several meetings ago, when they discussed the process. 
 
Mr. Guy Forchion stated that, as a body, the CAC voted on the process and that, even though he 
voted against the process, the body had adopted a process. 
 
The Chairwoman stated that she wants the BCC to know why the Committee is not taking a 
position on individual projects.  
 
* Mr. Navarrete stated that Item IIIA - Ives Estates District Park/Florida Memorial University- 
District 1 has been withdrawn from the agenda.  Mr. Hoffman inquired as to the reason for the 
item being withdrawn.  Mr. Navarrete indicated that the request to withdraw the item came from 
the sponsoring Commissioner and no reason was given. 
 
   

V D. Historic Preservation Fund RFP – District 8 III B. Military Museum –District 9 III C. Historic Hampton House- District 3  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Discussion: 

 
The Chairwoman stated that Items III-B & C and Item V-D all relate to the Historic Preservation 
Fund. Conceptually, there is a request from the Military Museum asking for an additional $1 
million.  The Historic Hampton House is requesting an additional $1.8 million.   Both of these 
projects are funded through individual line items in the original GOB Program.  At the last 
meeting, following the Historic Curtiss Mansion’s request for $1 million and Miami Marine 
Stadium’s request for $3 million, the CAC decided that they would not fund any other requests but 
would like the balance of the fund to be advertised via a competitive Request for Proposal (RFP) 
process as had been promised as a part of the original GOB.  Approximately three years ago, a 
public workshop was held in reference to the Historic Preservation Fund RFP which was recalled 
to deal with the issue regarding privately-owned historic residences.  Commissioner Sorenson is 
now sponsoring legislation requesting an RFP for the balance of the fund (currently at $6 million). 
The Committee needs to have a fuller discussion before a vote is taken on these items 
individually.as the outcome could impact the remaining fund.  
 
III C – Historic Hampton House – District 3 
 
Mr. Hoffman asked if the Historic Hampton House was not funded fully.  Mr. Navarrete responded 
that the GOB was not intended to fully fund most projects and it is hard to say if the $4.7 million 
was intended to fully complete the project.  The design phase is now complete and a cost 
estimate has identified a funding shortfall for the project.  He stated that a historic preservation job 
has to go through a much more rigorous review process than the regular process.  Mr. Navarrete 
indicated that a representative from the District Commissioner’s Office was present if the 
members had any questions.   
 
Ms. Russell asked what the amount to be funded through the RFP is.  The Chairwoman 
responded that the current amount is $6 million but if the amounts currently requested in the 
Commissioner-sponsored items are approved, the HPF balance will be less.  The Chairwoman 
asked if historic fund monies are included on the list.  Mr. Navarrete responded in the negative, 
which is one of the reasons that the RFP process has not moved forward.  The Chairwoman 
recognized Erica Wright, Aide to Commissioner Audrey Edmonson, who stated that the plans are 
finalized for the Hampton House; the Hampton House is on County property and is a County 
project.  The project is ready to be advertised for bids and staff wants to ensure that there is 
sufficient funding to complete the project.  She introduced Charlayne W. Thompkins, of the 
Historic Hampton House Trust, who reiterated that there is a funding gap, that this project needs 
to go forward and that she would hope the Committee approves the additional funding.  The 
Chairwoman asked if the additional funding is not approved, would the project not move forward.  
Mr. Navarrete responded that the County would not advertise the project until all the funding was 
identified.   
 
The Chairwoman asked for a motion.  Dr. Hess stated that he would like to see a competitive 
process.  Mr. Hoffman stated that the taxpayers made a commitment to District 3 and thus far all 
they have is a shell of a building. Mr. Hoffman stated that it is a disgrace that they have to come 
back for more funds on a non-competitive basis.  The Chairwoman stated that, in fairness, the 
voters were promised $4.7 million and the promise has been fulfilled.  Mr. Martinez asked how 

5



 

                                                                                          3 

this is different from the Curtiss Mansion request.  The Chairwoman responded that it is not, but a 
decision was made after the Curtiss Mansion request that the Committee would not consider 
other requests.  Mr. James made a motion to approve awarding $1.8 million to Historic Hampton 
House. The motion was seconded by Dr. Hess.  The Chairwoman stated that the Historic 
Preservation Fund started with $10 million and, if these two projects are funded, the fund balance 
available for the RFP process will be $3.2 million. Mr. Martinez asked what will happen if the 
Committee votes to deny the funding.  .  Dr. Hess withdrew his second of the original motion.  Mr. 
James moved to approve the funding to Historic Hampton House.  This motion was seconded by 
Mr. Hoffman.  The motion failed.  Voting in favor of the motion: Wendell James, Harry Hoffman, 
and Guy Forchion.  Voting against: Ernesto Martinez, Robin Reiter, Jeffrey Mishcon, Mary Scott 
Russell, Javier Salman and Dr. Jay Hess.   
 
III  B – Military Museum – District 9 
The Chairwoman asked for a motion to approve the recommendation of $1 million to the Military 
Museum. No motion was made.   
 
V  D – Historic Preservation Fund RFP – District 8 
The Chairwoman asked for a motion.  Mr. Martinez moved to approve the Historic Preservation 
RFP at the $6 million level.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Salman.  Mr. Forchion asked for 
clarification regarding the grant requests resulting from the RFP process having a ceiling of 
$250,000 and if the flavor of the discussion was to allow projects that are currently funded not be 
eligible.  Mr. Navarrete stated that in the original RFP, staff had stated that projects currently 
receiving GOB funds would not be eligible in order to distribute the funds more equitably.  Ms. 
Keenan responded that the language as currently stated in the resolution sponsored by 
Commissioner Sorenson states that projects currently receiving funding are eligible, residential 
properties will not be eligible, includes a cap of $250,000 per project and, if that cap is to be 
changed, a significant modification to the project description would be required.   
 
The Chairwoman stated that this has been a difficult conversation for many people and difficult to 
listen to especially if you are in the audience, but the challenge for the CAC is to be responsive to 
the voters who passed this Bond Program.  She indicated that the conversation has always been 
solid and respectful and hopes that the BCC will take into consideration the opinions of the people 
they appointed to the CAC.  The Chairwoman asked for a motion to recommend the resolution as 
presented by the Attorney.  Mr. Salman stated he would like to make a motion with the caveat 
that the Commissioner eliminates the cap.  This motion was seconded by Dr. Hess.  Mr. Mishcon 
inquired as to what the benefit would be to the cap being eliminated.  The Chairwoman stated that 
the difference is that there will be a competitive process.  Motion to approve the process 
eliminating the cap: Voting in favor: Dr. Hess, Mr. Salman, Mr. Forchion, Mr. Mishcon, and Mr. 
Hoffman.  Voting against: Mr. Martinez, Mr. James and Ms. Russell.  The Chairwoman explained 
the justification for lifting the cap.  Ms. Russell stated that she would like to know why the 
Commissioner put in the cap.  Mr. Navarrete responded that the $250,000 cap per project was in 
the original language and would still require a significant modification.  The original language in 
the project’s description reflected granting between $25,000 and $250,000 and not granting more 
than $1 million in a single year.  Mr. Salman modified his motion to recommend approval of 
Historic Preservation Fund RFP as written.  This motion was seconded by Mary Scott Russell.  
Motion carried.   
 
  
    

II. Approval of Minutes  

Discussion: 

 
The Chairwoman asked for a motion to approve the minutes of June 10, 2010.  Moved by Mr. 
Mishcon, seconded by Dr. Hess. Motion carried.   
 
    

IV. GOB 3
rd

 Quarter Progress Report  

Discussion: 

 
The Chairwoman asked for a motion to approve the GOB 3

rd
 Quarter Progress Reports.  Motion 

to approve by Dr. Hess, seconded by Mr. Salman.  Motion carried.  
   

III. Significant Modifications/Additions and Deletions  

6



 

                                                                                          4 

Discussion: 

 
III D – Zoo Miami – District 9 
Mr. Ron Magill of Zoo Miami (formerly Metro Zoo) gave a brief presentation on what is happening 
at the Zoo and projects that have been completed using GOB funds.  Motion to approve staff 
recommendation to approve significant modifications to Building Better Communities General 
Obligation Bond project nos. 47 and 46 “Miami Metrozoo” and to list project no. 47 in series 
resolution as eligible for funding in next bond series of Building Better Communities General 
Obligation Bonds and to fund $3,409,298 from such bond proceeds to complete the design phase 
by Dr. Hess, seconded by Mr. Salman.  Mr. Hoffman asked if the $12 million would be enough 
and will they need to come back asking for additional funds.  Mr. Navarrete responded that they 
will not be asking for additional funds.  Motion carried. 
 
   

V F. Revision of GOB Administrative Rules – Soft Costs  

Discussion: 

 
Mr. Navarrete reported that there is a cap on soft costs in the GOB Administrative Rules so that 
all the funds are not spent on design or other soft costs.  This particular revision affects several 
departments that are receiving funds from other sources for construction and would like to use 
100% of GOB funds on design.  The department would have to demonstrate that the construction 
portion of the project is being funded from other sources than GOB. Motion to accept staff’s 
recommendation by Dr. Jay Hess, seconded by Mr. Salman.  Mr. Salman asked what the overall 
cap on soft costs is.  Mr. Navarrete responded that the cap is 17%.  Motion carried.  
 
   
 

V A. Affordable Housing Allocation – District 12  

 
Discussion: 

 
 

 
Mr. Navarrete reported that this item allocates the District 12 affordable housing allocation to 
Consolidated Real Estate Investment LLC in the amount of $10,592,307.  Motion to accept staff’s 
recommendation by Mr. Mishcon, seconded by Mr. Salman.  Motion carried.  
 

VI. Other Business  

 
Discussion: 

 
 

 
Marlins Ballpark Stadium 
 
The Chairwoman stated that several inquires were made to have this item added to the agenda 
for discussion.  She explained the history of this issue by stating that $50 million of GOB funds 
was allocated to the Orange Bowl for renovations, and was subsequently re-allocated by the BCC 
for the new Marlins Stadium that is being constructed on the same site where the Orange Bowl 
stood.  Mr. Mishcon stated that the job of the CAC is to protect the voters and the voters 
approved renovating the Orange Bowl rather than giving the $50 million dollars to the Marlins.  He 
felt that the County was misled by the Marlins organization and he gave examples of the 
organization cutting players and stating they would have to move the franchise to another city if 
they did not get a new stadium.  He stated that the Marlins have a signed contract and are 
walking away laughing. He feels that the people in his District he comes in contact with were 
outraged and they are more outraged now in light of the new information that has come to light 
regarding the Marlins’ finances.  He is proposing crafting a resolution to the BCC requesting that 
the Marlins repay the tax payers over a period of time for the $50 million in GOB funds that was 
given to the organization and include in the resolution that the contract between the Marlins and 
the County be nullified due to it being signed based on misrepresentation by the Marlins.   
 
Mr. Hoffman stated that The Miami Herald article mentioned that the County had all the 
documentation regarding the Marlins organization finances, so it seems that we were 
misrepresented by the County and the Marlins.  The Chairwoman stated that she is respectful of 
all the discussion but when the blinders are put on for the GOB funding only and go back to the 
discussion on the $50 million funding to restore the Orange Bowl and then it was determined that 
the Orange Bowl could not be restored and the Orange Bowl was going to be demolished, that it 
was then approved to give the funds to the Florida Marlins to build a new stadium on the same 
footprint as the Orange Bowl.  
 
The Committee cannot deal with the management issues.  Mr. Forchion stated he agreed with Mr. 

7



 

                                                                                          5 

Mishcon and would second that motion when made.  He knew that $50 million would not be 
enough to fix the Orange Bowl and the County knew that the public would not approve giving $50 
million to the Marlins.  A motion to draft a resolution to recommend to the BCC that they request 
reimbursement from the Marlins over a period of time was made by Mr. Mishcon and seconded by 
Mr. Forchion.  The Chairwoman asked Mr. Jose Galan, County Liaison to the Florida Marlins to 
address the Committee.  Mr. Galan stated that the $50 million had already been spent.  He also 
stated that the $50 million for the Orange Bowl was not meant to be the only source of funding.  
The major tenant at the Orange Bowl was the University of Miami football team and when they 
relocated to Sun Life Stadium it did not make financial sense to renovate the property.  Mr. 
Mishcon stated that the CAC represents the taxpayers, and that the reallocation had been 
approved by the CAC and the BCC, but not unanimously.  He indicated that everyone knows that 
had this been put on a ballot, this would not have passed.  Mr. Mishcon stated that he would like 
the resolution to be presented in a friendly manner and request that the Marlins reimburse the 
County, hypothetically, over ten years at a rate of five million dollars a year.   
 
Mr. Galan stated when the Committee approved shifting the $50 million to the Orange Bowl site, 
the discussion was not on the Marlins financial position.  The County is not surprised by these 
events.  Mr. Navarrete stated that the staff considers this a successful project because a building 
is being constructed and that since their finances were strong would likely continue to operate the 
Stadium.  Voting in favor of the motion: Mr. Forchion, Mr. Hoffman, Mr. Mishcon, and Mr. James.  
Voting against the motion: Ms. Scott Russell, Mr. Martinez, Ms. Reiter, and Mr. Salman.  Motion 
failed.  
 
  
The Chairwoman thanked everyone for attending and called for any public comments or new 
business.  There being no new business or public comment, the meeting was adjourned at 10:17 
A.M.  
 
 

 
 
Next CAC Meeting Date – November 15, 2010 

8



Item
 II B

9



 

                                                                                          1 

I.  Welcome and Introductions 

Discussion: 

 
The meeting was called to order at 8:43 a.m. by Chairwoman Robin Reiter-Faragalli. She thanked 
members for attending the meeting and acknowledged that the meeting did not have a quorum.   
 

IV. Significant Modifications/Additions & Deletions 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
               Discussion: 

 
IV B.  Opa Locka City Hall HPF – District 1   
 
The Chairwoman stated that the Committee will start with the informational items.  The 
Chairwoman welcomed Commissioner Barbara Jordan to the meeting and asked her to speak on 
the City of Opa Locka item.  Commissioner Jordan stated that she tried to put forward legislation 
to have the funds for this project be presented to the Dade Heritage Trust but the legislation did 
not pass. As other projects started coming forward on the agenda, she decided to move this 
project along because she had to consider the needs of her District.  The Commissioner informed 
the Committee that the City Hall is a historic building of Moorish architecture originally built by 
Glenn Curtiss.  The City has applied for a state grant to compliment the funding from the GOB 
Historic Preservation Fund.  She stated that even though this was an informational item she 
wanted to pay courtesy to the Committee by presenting the item herself.  The Chairwoman 
thanked the Commissioner for the presentation. 
   
IV E.  Military Museum – District 9 
 
George Navarrete reported that the Military Museum was on the agenda for information and the 
item will be going to the BCC Committee on November 8, 2010 and the full BCC in December 
2010.  This request is a $1 million dollar allocation from the Historic Preservation Fund for this 
project.  The building has already been moved to ZooMiami property and the additional funds are 
needed to complete the building. 
 
IV D.  Historic Hampton House – District 3 
 
George Navarrete reported that he spoke to Commissioner Edmonson and she wanted the CAC 
and the public to receive a status update of the project.  The project is in the permitting stage and 
construction is expected to start in June 2011.  The construction duration is 18 months and the 
project is expected to be completed by late December 2012 or January 2013.  This project is 
owned by Miami-Dade County.  This item has been heard by the BCC Committee and is being 
presented to the full Board on November 4, 2010 for approval. 
 
It was determined that there will not be a quorum for this meeting, the Committee decided to 
make recommendations on these items based on the consensus of the members present.   

 Building Better Communities (BBC) 
GOB Citizens’ Advisory Committee 
 
 
 

October 26, 2010 
8:30 A.M. 

21st Floor Conference Room C 

Attendees: 

 
Committee members:   Robin Reiter-Faragalli, Barbara Bisno, Guy Forchion, Javier Salman, Ernesto Martinez, 
Jr., Ann Pope, Jose “Pepe” Riesco.  
 
Others present:   George Navarrete (OCI); Roslyn Alic-Batson (OCI); Monica Rizo (CAO); Ralph Cutie (OCI); 
Ana Finol (OCI);  Kathleen Kaufman (DPZ/OHAR); Frank Barriga (OCI); Enid C. Pinkney (Hampton House); 
Anthony D. Atwood (Military Museum); Charlayne W. Thompkins (Hampton House); Barbara Edwards (FMU); 
David Jaccarino (FMU); Charles Nyarko (Nyarko Architectural Group); Harold R. Clarke, Jr. (FMU); Vernita Nelson 
(Miami Gardens); Jorge Zamarillo (History Miami); Roxanne Cappello (History Miami); Michael Rosenberg (History 
Miami); Brandan DeCaro (Miami Gardens); Gerald Heffernan (CAO); Sandra Thompson (FMU); Commissioner 
Barbara Jordan (Dist. 1); Harold Brown (Opa Locka); Andre Ragin (Dist. 1); Maria Rodriguez-Porto (HCD); Tony 
Lima (MSM); George Lee (Opa Locka); Geri Keenan (CAO); Merci Rodriguez (CEO); Robert McCammon (History 
Miami); Subrata Basu (MDP&Z); Aleida Arrazcaeta (OCI); Richard Heisenbottle (RJHA); Fernand Thony (Opa 
Locka); Marlen Brant (OCI); Jorge Mora (MDPR); Angus Laney (MDPR); Mario Berrios (HCD). 
 
 

 

10



 

                                                                                          2 

 
IV A. Ives Estates District Park/Florida Memorial University – District 1  
 
This item reduces the allocation made to Ives Estate District Park by $5 million; adds a new 
Project No. 123.1, Florida Memorial University Multi-purpose Arena; and, allocates the $5 million 
to the new project. 
 
The Chairwoman asked Commissioner Jordan to address the Committee on this item.  
Commissioner Jordan stated that the process for moving this project forward started with a letter 
of request for support from the Interim President of Florida Memorial University, Dr. Sandra 
Thompson.  This is an opportunity to replace the gymnasium at the campus.  The new facility 
would allow the University to broaden its sports curriculum and also allow high schools the 
opportunity to host games at the facility.  The Commissioner stated that a partnership like this was 
implemented previously with the Lou Rawls Performing Arts Center with the University, the State 
of Florida and Miami-Dade County as partners.  The Commissioner spoke with former 
Commissioner Betty Ferguson who had no objections to taking $5 million from the Ives Estates 
District Park.  A meeting was held with the residents in the area and present at that meeting was 
the Miami-Dade County Parks Department staff.  The residents also did not have any objections.  
Commissioner Jordan mentioned that the original funding requested by Florida Memorial for this 
project was $10 million, but the request has since been revised to the current $5 million.  She has 
asked the University to raise the additional $5 million required to fund the project.  The total cost 
of the project is $10 million.  The Chairwoman asked if the project was shovel ready.  Dr. 
Thompson responded that construction will be ready to begin within the next 18 months.  The 
Chairwoman asked for flexibility in requesting the funding from the second bond sale.  Mr. 
Salman asked if Ives Estates Park would have to change the scope due to this reduction.  Mr. 
Navarrete responded that the original GOB allocation for the park was $10 million and, prior to 
approval by the voters, former Commissioner Betty Ferguson added $10 million to the project, so 
in essence the park is gaining $5 million.  Mr. Jorge Mora of the Miami-Dade Park and Recreation 
Department responded that this item will not change the scope of work.  
  
Motion to take a consensus of the members present to approve recommendation made by Ms. 
Ann Pope and seconded by Ms. Barbara Bisno.  Consensus granted. 
 
A discussion ensued regarding the three projects above that Commissioners have requested 
Historic Preservation Fund dollars for - the Historic Hampton House, the Military Museum and the 
Opa Locka City Hall.  The Chairwoman asked for a consensus vote on the three requests to move 
them forward.  Mr. Navarrete reminded the Committee that these items were being presented as 
information items.  Ms. Bisno inquired as to the Historic Preservation Fund RFP and if there was a 
way to know how many entities would be interested in this RFP.  The Chairwoman responded that 
there was no way of knowing that but at the RFP meeting held a couple of years ago many 
homeowners, business owners and organizations were represented.  However, the RFP was 
cancelled to address the issues of residential properties being open to the public.  Mr. Guy 
Forchion asked about the letter from Historic Preservation in support of Hampton House.  Ms. 
Kathleen Kaufman, Chief of Historic Preservation for Miami-Dade County responded that the 
letter was written before the Historic Preservation Fund RFP item sponsored by Commissioner 
Sorenson was approved and, although the Dade Heritage Trust Board believes the projects are 
all worthy, they are holding off issuing any more letters until there is a resolution to the RFP 
process.  The Chairwoman asked if the County could loan the funds to the organizations to help 
them out in the short term and have them pay it back over a period of time in order to have 
enough money for an RFP.  Mr. Gerald Heffernan responded that this would have to be reviewed 
because there might be tax implications with the GOB bonds.  Ms. Bisno wanted to know what 
the original allocation was to Historic Hampton House and Military Museum.  Mr. Navarrete 
responded that Hampton House was allocated $4.7 million and Military Museum was allocated $2 
million as line items in the GOB Program.  
      
The Chairwoman thanked Commissioner Jordan for attending the meeting. 
 

V. Trade Winds Affordable Housing – District 2  

 
 
 
 

             Discussion: 

 
Mr. Navarrete reported that this item entailed Commissioner Rolle allocating $6.5 million from the 
District 2 allocation of $10.592 million for affordable housing.  Motion to move item forward by 
consensus by Ms. Barbara Bisno, seconded by Ms. Ann Pope.  Consensus granted. 
 

11



 

                                                                                          3 

 
 
 

  

IV C. History Miami (Formerly Historical Museum) 

Discussion: 

 
The Chairwoman stated that this item was discussed before where History Miami will move into 
the Miami Art Museum space rather than move into Museum Park.  The Museum will stay at its 
present location and expand and the funds will be taken from the New Miami Museum of Science 
& Planetarium Facility.  Motion to move forward the History Miami item by Mr. Javier Salman, 
second by Mr. Ernesto Martinez.  Consensus granted. 
 
    

III. 2011 Sunset Review of County Boards   

Discussion: 

 
The Chairwoman stated that every two years the County reviews their advisory boards and, in the 
package, are documents recommending the continuance of this Committee.  This Committee 
provides a very valuable service and she would like this Committee to continue.  Motion to 
continue with the Citizens’ Advisory Committee by Ms. Barbara Bisno, seconded by Ms. Ann 
Pope.  Consensus granted.   
 
   

VII. Selection of New Chairperson 

Discussion: 

 
The Chairwoman stated that, at the next meeting, the Vice-Chair Ms. Bisno would serve as Chair.  
Nominations for the Chairperson position will be heard then.  Staff will call each member to ask if 
they would be interested in serving if nominated.   
 
This meeting is Ms. Reiter-Faragalli’s last meeting as she has been appointed by the Board of 
County Commissioners to serve on the Public Health Trust Board.   
 
Mr. George Navarrete introduced Assistant County Manager Alina Hudak to present a special 
plaque to the Chairwoman, Ms. Robin Reiter-Faragalli who has served as Chair of this Committee 
from the inception of the GOB Program.  Ms. Hudak and Mr. Navarrete thanked the outgoing 
Chairwoman for her more than five years of exemplary service to the CAC.   
   

VIII. Public Comments  

Discussion: 

 
The Chairwoman asked if there were any comments from the public.  Vernita Nelson from the City 
of Miami Gardens thanked members of the CAC and OCI staff for attending the opening of the 
Betty T. Ferguson Community Center and invited those who could not attend to come to the 
facility.  She also thanked the County for providing some of the funding.   
 
Tony Lima of the Miami Science Museum (MSM) mentioned MSM’s concern that the Miami 
Science Museum was not listed on the list of projects to be funded from the next two bond sales.   
 
The Chairwoman adjourned the meeting at 9:32 a.m.  
 
   
 

 
 
Next CAC Meeting Date – January 2011 

12



Item
 IV

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



Item
 V

28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



Item
 V

I A

39



   Substitute 

Approved                                            Mayor  Agenda Item No. 

Veto __________  12-7-10 

Override __________ 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. ________________________ 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING SIGNIFICANT 
MODIFICATION TO BUILDING BETTER COMMUNITIES 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND PROGRAM PROJECT NO. 
293 - “HISTORIC PRESERVATION FUND”, AS IDENTIFIED 
IN APPENDIX A TO RESOLUTION NO. R-919-04 TO 
INCREASE ALLOCATION FROM $10,000,000 TO 
$10,300,000 AND TO ALLOCATE $1,500,000 TO HISTORIC 
BILTMORE HOTEL AND COUNTRY CLUB, AFTER 
PUBLIC HEARING; APPROVING ALLOCATION OF 
ADDITIONAL $300,000 FROM INTEREST EARNINGS 
GENERATED FROM INVESTMENT OF BUILDING 
BETTER COMMUNITIES GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND 
PROCEEDS; WAIVING ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 
CONTEMPLATING COMPETITIVE PROCESS; AND 
AUTHORIZING COUNTY MAYOR OR MAYOR’S 
DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE INTERLOCAL COOPERATION 
AGREEMENT AND TO DISBURSE FUNDS AFTER 
SATISFACTION OF CONDITIONS PRECEDENT 

 

WHEREAS, on December 7, 2010, this Board passed Resolution No. R-1146-10 

(attached hereto as Exhibit “A”) which approved a significant modification to Building Better 

Communities General Obligation Bond Program (the “BBC Program”) Project No. 293 – 

“Historic Preservation Fund” (“Project No. 293”), listed in Appendix A to Resolution No. 919-

04 (the “Cultural Facility Resolution”), in order to allocate $1.2 million to the restoration of the 

exterior of the Historic Biltmore Hotel and Country Club (“Biltmore”); and 

 WHEREAS, it has been determined that $1.5 million is needed in order to complete the 

restoration of the exterior of the Biltmore, and thus, an additional $300,000 for Project No. 293 

will be necessary in order to complete the exterior restoration of the Biltmore and to fund the 

budget shortfall; and 

40



   Substitute 
   Agenda Item No. 
   Page No. 2 
 
 WHEREAS, as of January 14, 2011, $472,000 of net interest income was available from 

the investment of BBC GOB Program bond proceeds derived from BBC GOB Program bonds 

(the “GOB Interest”), including but not limited to the Series 2008A bonds; and  

 WHEREAS, this Board wishes to allocate $300,000 of GOB Interest to Project No. 293 

in order to fund the budget shortfall; and   

 WHEREAS, one of the projects listed in Appendix A to the Cultural Facility Resolution 

and approved by the voters for funding is Project No. 293 – “Historic Preservation Fund” 

(“Project No. 293”), a Countywide fund with an allocation equal to $10,000,000 and a project 

description that states:  “Establish a facilities preservation fund to provide emergency funding to 

property owners for the rehabilitation of residential and commercial historic sites.  The program 

is geared to make an impact in the revitalization of historic buildings at the neighborhood level, 

particularly designated historic districts and other areas having a high concentration of older 

buildings.  The Preservation Fund intends to make available up to $1 million annually in grants 

and loans between $25,000 and $250,000 and $3 million to fund the Miami Marine Stadium, $1 

million to fund the restoration of the Curtiss Mansion, $1.8 million to fund the rehabilitation and 

restoration of the Historic Hampton House, $1 million to fund the restoration of the Military 

Museum, $2.0 million to fund the restoration of the Historic Opa-Locka City Hall, and $1.2 

million to fund the restoration of the exterior of the Historic Biltmore Hotel and Country Club”; 

and 

 WHEREAS, all additions, deletions and significant modifications to individual projects 

or to Appendix A to the Cultural Facility Resolution require a majority vote of the Board after a 

public hearing; and 

41



   Substitute 
   Agenda Item No. 
   Page No. 3 
 
 WHEREAS, accordingly, this Board wishes to approve a significant modification to 

Project No. 293 to:  (a) increase the original allocation from $10,000,000 to $10,300,000 and to 

approve the funding of the additional $300,000 from GOB interest; and (b) change the Project 

Description to add a $1.5 million allocation to the restoration of the exterior of the Biltmore such 

that the new Project Description would read as follows: “Establish a facilities preservation fund 

to provide emergency funding to property owners for the rehabilitation of historic sites.  The 

program is geared to make an impact in the revitalization of historic buildings at the 

neighborhood level, particularly designated historic districts and other areas having a high 

concentration of older buildings.  The Preservation Fund intends to make available $3 million to 

fund the Miami Marine Stadium, $1 million to fund the restoration of the Curtiss Mansion, $1.8 

million to fund the rehabilitation and restoration of the Historic Hampton House, $1 million to 

fund the restoration of the Military Museum, $2.0 million to fund the restoration of the Historic 

Opa-Locka City Hall, and $1.5 million to fund the restoration of the exterior of the Historic 

Biltmore Hotel and Country Club”; and 

 WHEREAS, Implementing Order No. 3-47 sets forth a process for the allocation of 

surplus funds from the BBC Program that includes the funding of budget shortfalls of BBC 

Program projects from BBC Program interest earnings or unspent bond proceeds; and 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with Implementing Order No. 3-47, this item was presented 

to the BBC Program Citizen’s Advisory Committee (“CAC”) on January 26, 2011 and the CAC 

voted to favorably/unfavorably recommend this item; and 

WHEREAS, the Administrative Rules governing the BBC GOB Program contemplate 

that the award of Project No. 293 funds to an eligible project be made pursuant to a competitive 

process even though such a process is not legally required; and  

42



   Substitute 
   Agenda Item No. 
   Page No. 4 
 

WHEREAS, this Board wishes to award the additional $300,000 from Project No. 293 

BBC Program funds to the Biltmore without a competitive process; and 

WHEREAS, this Board wishes to authorize the execution of an Interlocal Cooperation 

Agreement with the City of Coral Gables for $1.5 million and the disbursement of BBC Program 

funds for this purpose only after the satisfaction of conditions precedent set forth in Resolution 

No. R-1146-10, 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA, that: 

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated in this resolution and are approved. 

Section 2. This Board hereby approves the significant modification to Project No.  

293, identified in Appendix A to Resolution No. R-919-04, after a public hearing to:  (a) increase 

the original allocation from $10,000,000 to $10,300,000 and approves the funding of the 

additional $300,000 from GOB interest; and (b) change the Project Description to read as 

follows: “Establish a facilities preservation fund to provide emergency funding to property 

owners for the rehabilitation of historic sites.  The program is geared to make an impact in the 

revitalization of historic buildings at the neighborhood level, particularly designated historic 

districts and other areas having a high concentration of older buildings.  The Preservation Fund 

intends to make available $3 million to fund the Miami Marine Stadium, $1 million to fund the 

restoration of the Curtiss Mansion, $1.8 million to fund the rehabilitation and restoration of the 

Historic Hampton House, $1 million to fund the restoration of the Military Museum, $2.0 million 

to fund the restoration of the Historic Opa-Locka City Hall, and $1.5 million to fund the 

restoration of the exterior of the Historic Biltmore Hotel and Country Club.” 

43



   Substitute 
   Agenda Item No. 
   Page No. 5 
 

Section 3.   This Board waives the Administrative Rules governing the BBC GOB 

Program that contemplate the award of Project No. 293 funds to an eligible project pursuant to a 

competitive process and awards an additional $300,000 from Project No. 293 BBC GOB 

Program funds to the restoration of the Biltmore without a competitive process. 

Section 4. Notwithstanding the authority delegated to the County Manager pursuant 

to Resolution No. R-595-05, this Board hereby authorizes the County Mayor or the Mayor’s 

designee to execute an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement(s) with the City of Coral Gables and to 

disburse BBC GOB Program funds to fund the restoration of the exterior of the Biltmore only 

after the satisfaction of the conditions precedent contained in Resolution No. R-1146-10, which 

is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and is incorporated herein by reference. 

The Prime Sponsor of the foregoing resolution is Commissioner Rebeca Sosa.  It was 

offered by Commissioner                                              , who moved its adoption.  The motion 

was seconded by Commissioner                                                      and upon being put to a vote, 

the vote was as follows: 

Dennis C. Moss, Chairman 
Jose “Pepe” Diaz, Vice-Chairman 

Bruno A. Barreiro Audrey M. Edmonson 
Carlos A. Gimenez Sally A. Heyman 
Barbara J. Jordan Joe A. Martinez 
Dorrin D. Rolle Natacha Seijas 
Katy Sorenson Rebeca Sosa 
Sen. Javier D. Souto  

 
 The Chairperson thereupon declared the resolution duly passed and adopted this  day of, 

2011.  This resolution shall become effective ten (10) days after the date of its adoption unless 

vetoed by the Mayor, and if vetoed, shall become effective only upon an override by this Board. 

       MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

44



   Substitute 
   Agenda Item No. 
   Page No. 6 
 
       BY ITS BOARD OF 
       COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
       HARVEY RUVIN, CLERK 
 
 
       By:________________________ 
             Deputy Clerk 
 
 
Approved by County Attorney as 
to form and legal sufficiency.  _______ 
 
Monica Rizo 

45



Item
 V

II

46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



Item
 V

III A

67



68

kmd
Text Box
ILUCAgenda Item No. 6(E)

kmd
Text Box
January 12, 2011



69



70



71



72



73



Item
 V

III B

74



75



76



77



78



79



80



Item
 V

III C

81



82



83



84



85



86



87



 
 
    
   HistoryItem_V1
   AddNumbers
        
     Range: all pages
     Font: Times-Roman 12.0 point
     Origin: bottom left
     Offset: horizontal 594.00 points, vertical 18.00 points
     Prefix text: 'page  '
     Suffix text: ''
     Use registration colour: no
      

        
     
     BL
     page  
     1
     TR
     1
     0
     23
     96
     0
     12.0000
            
                
         Both
         87
         1
         AllDoc
              

       CurrentAVDoc
          

     594.0000
     18.0000
      

        
     QITE_QuiteImposingPlus2
     Quite Imposing Plus 2.1
     Quite Imposing Plus 2
     1
      

        
     0
     87
     86
     87
      

   1
  

    
   HistoryItem_V1
   DelPageNumbers
        
     Range: all pages
      

        
     1
     416
     277
            
                
         5
         AllDoc
         57
              

       CurrentAVDoc
          

      

        
     QITE_QuiteImposingPlus2
     Quite Imposing Plus 2.1
     Quite Imposing Plus 2
     1
      

        
     0
     87
     86
     87
      

   1
  

    
   HistoryItem_V1
   AddNumbers
        
     Range: all pages
     Font: Times-Roman 12.0 point
     Origin: bottom left
     Offset: horizontal 590.40 points, vertical 18.00 points
     Prefix text: ''
     Suffix text: ''
     Use registration colour: no
      

        
     
     BL
     
     1
     TR
     1
     0
     23
     96
    
     0
     12.0000
            
                
         Both
         87
         1
         AllDoc
              

       CurrentAVDoc
          

     590.4000
     18.0000
      

        
     QITE_QuiteImposingPlus2
     Quite Imposing Plus 2.1
     Quite Imposing Plus 2
     1
      

        
     0
     87
     86
     87
      

   1
  

 HistoryList_V1
 qi2base



	f89d7b3e-5727-43da-a830-2833c56bd6fc: 
	ede5cbd0-487a-419a-b153-8c3f25a6962e: 
	afbdfd5f-65e4-4e12-a53c-24612eeea372: 
	19678706-2a0b-4576-bfed-dfa60a8e1bf3: 
	e22ba5b2-7192-436f-983b-ac92a962e24e: 
	06b782ce-5910-4bbc-96b5-a3253a6e09f6: 
	c1ad663b-2439-4147-8a12-075cca379251: 
	69e4fa54-0ab7-4ef4-8283-01ca33bbe6a0: 
	ea487c02-77cc-426d-8d54-4e7df9eb8d80: 
	70b5d882-1740-43f4-b071-9f4c4eb2ff91: 
	d2fb61fa-5013-4940-b9d6-e806491ac50f: 
	75462b2f-27d6-409d-92fa-3194e36f5804: 
	7010bd92-08ec-4111-9010-b1c1fa945faa: 
	9c738359-2043-416d-ab87-36192b2f9284: 
	bcb20ca8-7232-4e2d-8fda-c02fb1557fdd: 
	bce7a2a0-495a-479c-8e6b-d0ad01fac8be: 
	42124d63-f166-4ec8-9aac-6707f2cd08ba: 
	2e3920ea-c131-4556-b30a-677f4b4f40c6: 
	190a3a6d-7109-4620-b188-75ac86dc7d80: 
	622d53a9-43b8-44f8-a1ef-dcb6ac89d630: 


